
January 12, 2017 Public Works Minutes   1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 12, 2017 – 5:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL, MEETING ROOM 2A 
 

Meeting was called to order by Chairman Kordus at 5:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call:  Present: Chairman Kordus, Alderman Gelting, Alderman Flower, Alderman Skates, and Alderman Hedlund.  

Arrived Late: Alderman Flower. Also Present: City Administrator Oborn, Mayor Kupsik, Director of Public Works Earle, 

Public Works Superintendant Waswo, and Parking Manager Mullally.  Public Present:  Karen Yancy, Dennis Jordan, and 

Chris Schultz. 

 

Comments from the public limited to 3 minutes.  None. 

 

Approval of Public Works Committee meeting minutes from December 8, 2016 as prepared and distributed 

Hedlund/Skates motion to approve.  Carried unanimously. 

 

Parking Manager Report 

Parking Manager Mullally had nothing new to report at this time. 

 

Discussion/Recommendation on use of parking cards 

Mr. Kordus said this had been looked at once before.  This would be a smart card technology that would replace the 

parking sticker.  It would eliminate the two hours per day and give households a certain number of hours per parking 

season.  Mr. Skates questioned if people would sell them.  Mr. Kordus said it would not be tied to a car.  Mr. Skates said it 

is one more thing to lose and one more thing to tie up employees at the front counter.  Mr. Kordus stated the app couldn’t 

be used for this or there would be fees for every transaction.  Parking Manager Mullally suggested she do some research 

on a virtual permit to tie to the license plate.  Mr. Oborn added the benefit of these technologies is that they show accurate 

occupancy rates.  Ms. Mullally stated start up would be between $5,000 and $7,000.  There is a minimum of 1,000 smart 

cards at $5.00 a card and $1,000 to $2,000 for the software.  The stickers cost .17 per sticker.  Ms. Mullally confirmed that 

would require updating the kiosks to accept the parking cards.  She will get numbers for virtual permits as well as a 

parking card pilot as well.  Mayor Kupsik said there have been complaints from residents that want a cumulative 2 hours 

per day rather than a block.  Ms. Mullally added the cards would be an older technology.      

   

Discussion/Recommendation on 2017 parking rates 

Ms. Mullally went over an analysis for city-wide paid parking.       

 

Alderman Flower arrived at 5:20pm.   

 

The first proposal was from the BID and suggested a city-wide price increase from $1.00/hr to $1.50/hr for all metered 

stalls from Memorial Day through Labor Day.  That could bring in additional income of $300,000.  The cons are that it 

may confuse visitors and stickers will have to be put on the kiosks to inform of rate changes between seasons.  Proposal 2 

is a straight $2.00 across the board for all parking year.  That may double the parking income.  Proposal 3 would split the 

parking season in to ‘on season’ and ‘off season’ categories.  All stalls would be $1.00 during the off season.  Memorial 

Day to Labor Day it would be $2.00.  Proposal 4 changes the parking rate to $1.00 in certain areas and $2.00 in high 

volume areas year round.  She stated she would propose the new South Shore Lot be $1.00/hr.  Mr. Skates feels the 

offerings on the edge of town may keep visitors from visiting the downtown for shopping and dining.  Mayor Kupsik 

added it was a good parking year because of the weather.  Ms. Mullally said these are just ideas that can be continued to 

be discussed.   

Gelting/Hedlund motion to continue to next month.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Director of Public Works Report 

Director of Public Works Earle stated there wasn’t anything big to report as it is the middle of winter but everything is 

being handled.  Mayor Kupsik said Winterfest will be coming up and the South Lot should be open for parking.  He 

questioned if it could be marked prior to then.  Mr. Earle said they could figure something out if there isn’t any snow.  

There was also discussion on how to prepare for the upcoming Winterfest event with regard to parking.   



January 12, 2017 Public Works Minutes   2 

 

Discussion/Recommendation on Equipment Replacement Fund items 

Mr. Earle went over a number of items to be replaced.  There was discussion on a tractor used at Veterans Park that is 

needed but may be an issue if the YMCA were to move out there.  He asked the committee to give that item a lot of 

thought before making a decision on it.   

 

Discussion/Recommendation on 2017 Road Program 

Mr. Earle went over the replacement costs for the roads.  He recommends a 12.5 to 15 year replacement schedule.  

Alderman Flower asked what the condition of the roads are today.  Mr. Earle said he would give them a rating of 5.5 to 6 

on a scale from 1 to 10.  Mr. Earle said this can be done in the spring or there is a history of doing roads in the fall.  The 

financing for the projects was discussed.  Mr. Earle added the list of roads to be repaired will be shared with the Utility 

Director as well so they can plan their projects together accordingly.  Mr. Earle will do alternates for a quarter, half and 

three quarters.   

 

Discussion/Recommendation on additions and alterations to public restrooms in the Visitor’s Center building in 

Flat Iron Park with corresponding Preliminary Plan Design, and Proposal for Architectural/Engineering services, 

by McCormack + Etten Architects LLP (sent to Public Works by Park Board on Jan 4, 2017) 

Mayor Kupsik stated there is an issue with not having enough public restrooms in the downtown area.  VISIT Lake 

Geneva is talking about remodeling the inside of the visitor’s center in Flat Iron Park.  Mr. Kordus noted VISIT Lake 

Geneva did not want their storage space taken away inside the building.  Mayor Kupsik said a drawing was drafted that 

would add additional restroom facilities.  Mr. Oborn said at this time they do not know how much it will cost but it would 

come from capital.  Mr. Kordus thought if they were willing to pay for the work up front, we would negotiate the rent for 

the building.  He feels one firm should look at what they want to do and what the city wants to do.  Mayor Kupsik 

proposed the city do the bathrooms with or without VISIT Lake Geneva.  If they need to move out of the visitors center, 

that is ok.  Mayor Kupsik suggested approving this proposal and let the City Administrator discuss with the architectural 

firm to see if they will make the whole building inclusive in the proposal.  Mr. Skates suggested having VISIT Lake 

Geneva at the next meeting to discuss this. 

Skates/Flower motion to continue this item to the next meeting.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Discussion/Recommendation on White River Crossing Acquisition Project (part of former Hillmoor Golf Course 

Property) with corresponding grant, required appraisal, and possible partnership (sent to Public Works by Park Board on 

Jan 4, 2017) 

Mr. Oborn introduced Karen Yancy and Dennis Jordan with the Geneva Lake Conservancy.  Mr. Oborn noted a grant was 

applied for in 2012 for $170,000 for 60.6 acres.  The property was never done and the grant expired.  Mr. Oborn knows it 

is going to cost a lot more than $170,000 to acquire that property.  The Geneva Lake Conservancy has approved 

partnering with the city.  Mr. Oborn is looking for $1,250 to fund half the appraisal to start the grant writing process.  

Once the appraisal is received, we will have some idea of the cost.  There may be an $85,000 commitment right away.  

Karen Yancy added the deadline for the grant is the end of March.  The only thing needed is the appraisal.  Ms. Yancy 

noted the 20 to 30 acres that would be purchased would be for preservation and enhancement.  The conservancy part 

would just be hiking trails, they would not help with maintenance of a kayak area or building a bike path.  Mr. Oborn was 

told to go ahead with the appraisal as it is in his spending authority. 

     

Discussion/Recommendation on Dog Park handicap lot (sent to Public Works by Park Board on Jan 4, 2017) 

Mr. Kordus said there is a parking lot there with a sidewalk.  Mr. Earle said the City does not own the property, it is 

owned by the school district.  The dog park away from the existing handicapped stalls is no farther than Veteran’s Park to 

the baseball diamonds.  There are sewer and water pipes in there as well as control circuits that run to the pump station.  

Mr. Earle’s believes they have access there. 

 

Discussion/Recommendation on Manning Way playground equipment (sent to Public Works by Park Board on Jan 4, 2017) 

Mr. Earle said it was recommended by the Park Board and he does not have an issue with it.  Mr. Skates said the park 

fund has $12,225 in it and there is almost $20,000 in impact fee money, so the recommendation was that the Park Board 

would pay $20,000 toward it.  There was discussion about adaptive swings for other parks in the city as well.  Mr. Gelting 

asked how many permits need to be pulled in a development to trigger a park being built.  Mayor Kupsik said the 

comprehensive plan calls for a park to be built in that area.  Mr. Gelting said this is being done now with partial funding 

just because we want to.  Mr. Waswo added they are looking at freedom swings which are adaptive.  They would like to 



January 12, 2017 Public Works Minutes   3 

put one in at Manning Way Park as well as interchange an existing swing at Seminary Park, the Tot Lot, and Rushwood 

Park.  They wouldn’t have to put in any additional supports or do any other type of work.  Mr. Skates said the cost for 

those swings was included in the $50,000 for the Manning Way Park.  Mr. Earle said there would be expenses for the 

grading and the filling.  Mr. Kordus said he would be ok putting it on the list for capital borrowing.  Mayor Kupsik said 

there are things that need to be done and they can’t keep blinders on.  Mr. Earle said they could get a lot more money in 

donations for the parks but they would have to think about naming rights, plaques, etc.  It was decided to put this item on 

the list for capital borrowing. 

   

Discussion/Action on revising the Public Works meeting schedule 

Mr. Kordus said they would go with the recommended schedule.  The next meeting will be the 3
rd

 Tuesday of the month 

at 5:00 which would be February 21
st
.   

 

Adjournment.   

Gelting/Skates motion to adjourn at 7:00 pm.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

/s/ Stephanie Gunderson, Assistant City Clerk 

 
THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 


